
SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY 
Board of Directors Remote Access Meeting 

Thursday, June 18, 2020   
7:00 – 9:00 p.m. 

In response to COVID-19, on March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order 
N-29-20 which waived certain provisions of the Brown Act and allowed public 

meetings to be conducted via teleconferencing or other electronic means. 

The information below provides an opportunity for members of the Board and the 
public to participate in a simultaneous webcast or to join by telephone. 

Webcast (audio and video): https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/519187253 

To dial in by phone: (669) 224-3412, Access Code 519-187-253 

For meeting materials visit: www.midcountygroundwater.org/committee-meetings 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Oral Communications Related to Items Not on the Agenda
Issues within the purview of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
(MGA). Guidelines attached.

4. Consent Agenda
4.1 Approve Minutes from January 16, 2020, Board Meeting (no memo) 
4.2 Acknowledge Member Agency Board Appointments 
4.3 Approve Letters of Support for the Pajaro Valley Water Management 

Agency’s College Lake Integrated Resources Management Project 

5. General Business
5.1 Review Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and Proposed Budget for 

  2020-2021 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/519187253
tel:+16692243412,,519187253
http://www.midcountygroundwater.org/committee-meetings


http://www.midcountygroundwater.org/sites/default/files/uploads/WY2019_MGA_AnnualReportFinal_web.pdf
http://www.midcountygroundwater.org/sites/default/files/uploads/WY2019_MGA_AnnualReportFinal_web.pdf


SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY (MGA) 

Guidance for Public Input during MGA Board Meetings 

All information furnished to the MGA Board of Directors with this agenda is provided on the MGA 
website located here: http://www.midcountygroundwater.org/committee-meetings.  

Submittal of Written Correspondence and Informational Materials 
Submittal of written correspondence, informational materials, or handouts must be received by 
5:00 pm on the Monday of the week prior to the scheduled board meeting (10 days prior to the 
meeting) to be included in the meeting materials for board review (commonly referred to as the 
board packet). Due to holidays and other factors there may be instances when even the above 
deadline is not adequate. Submittals received after the deadline but prior to the start of the board 
meeting will be included in the meeting materials for the next board meeting. Submittals received 
after the deadline may not have time to reach board members or be read by them prior to the 
consideration of an item. Materials may also be submitted in-person immediately preceding the 
start of a board meeting by giving those materials directly to the Board Chair. Organized groups 
wishing to make a presentation are asked to contact Laura Partch at lpartch@cfscc.org or 
831.662.2053 prior to the meeting. Soquel Creek Water District serves as the designated 
administrative headquarters of the MGA. Written correspondence and materials may be directed 
to: Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency, c/o Soquel Creek Water District, Attention: 
Emma Olin, Executive Secretary/Board Clerk, 5180 Soquel Drive, Soquel, CA  95073.  

Public Comments 

Non-Agenda Items 
At the outset of the meeting, during the time set aside for public comment, members of the public 
can comment on any item not on the agenda as long as it is related to the subject matter of the 
MGA. Each speaker will be limited to a single presentation of up to three minutes. The maximum 
time set aside for public comment will be 15 minutes total for all speakers. Time limits may be 
increased or decreased at the Board Chair's discretion. Those wishing to speak should come to the 
front of the room and be recognized by the Board Chair. Speakers must address the entire board: 
dialogue will not be permitted either between speakers and board members or amongst board 
members.  

Agenda Items 
Comments may also be given during the remainder of the meeting pertaining to each agenda item. 
For items listed on the agenda, the board will deliberate and take action after speakers have 
concluded their remarks. Each speaker will be limited to up to three minutes per agenda item. The 
maximum time set aside for public comment will be 15 minutes total for all speakers. Time limits 
may be increased or decreased at the Board Chair's discretion. Additional comments may be given 
at the Board Chair’s discretion related to specific items listed on the agenda. Additional public 
comment will not be allowed during the board's deliberation unless the Board Chair specifically 
calls on someone in the audience. 

Disability Access 
The meeting room is wheelchair accessible. Please contact Laura Partch at lpartch@cfscc.org or 
831.662.2053 if you need assistance in order to participate in a public meeting or if you need the 
agenda and public documents modified as required by Section 202 of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 

http://www.midcountygroundwater.org/committee-meetings
mailto:lpartch@cfscc.org


SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY 
Thursday, January 16, 2020 - 7:00 p.m. 

Simpkins Family Swim Center 
979 17th Avenue, Santa Cruz, California 

DRAFT MINUTES 

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 by Chair LaHue. 

2. Roll Call

Directors present: Curt Abramson, David Baskin, Bruce Daniels (arrived late), Jon 
Kennedy, Jim Kerr, Tom LaHue, Cynthia Mathews, and Marco Romanini. 

Directors absent: Zach Friend, John Leopold, Rob Marani. 

Staff present: Ralph Bracamonte, Ron Duncan, Tim Carson, Sierra Ryan, Darcy Pruitt, 
Leslie Strohm, Laura Partch. 

Others present: Approximately 2 members of the public. 

3. Oral Communications Related to Items Not on the Agenda
Issues within the purview of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
(MGA). Guidelines attached.

Member of the public Becky Steinbruner reported that her action against the Soquel 
Creek Water District (SqCWD) and Pure Water Soquel (PWS) is now before the Sixth 
District Court of Appeal. She attended a State Water Resources Control Board conference 
on the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).  As the state has made it 
easier to get water rights and has reduced the filing fees for obtaining water rights, she 
encouraged the pursuit of more surface water transfers. 

Vice Chair Matthews noted that at the end of January the City of Santa Cruz would make 
appointments to the MGA, and invited communications to the Mayor in support of the 
reappointment of Director Baskin.  

4. Consent Agenda
4.1 Approve Minutes from November 21, 2019 Meeting (no memo) 
4.2 Accept Audited 2018/19 Financial Statements  



Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency 
Board Meeting Minutes – January 16, 2020 
Page 2 of 5  

4.3 Approve Guidance for Written and Oral Communications at MGA 
Board Meetings 

5. General Business
5.1 Approve Revised Proposed Policy on Response to Requests from 

Other Agencies for MGA Written Support, Comment, or Position  

Staff reported the revised proposed policy incorporates direction from the Board at the 
November 2019 meeting.  The proposed policy now requires that the Chair, Vice Chair, 
and each member of the Executive Team approve any letter of support for a grant 
application or comment on California Environmental Quality Act documents, and 
authorizes the signing of the letter or comment.  Comments on pending legislation require 
full Board approval.   

It was clarified that the full Board would need to act on legislative action.  No other 
questions. 

Director Daniels arrived. 

5.2 Approve Meeting Schedule for 2020 

Staff reported the remaining meeting dates for 2020 have been updated.  Simpkins Family 
Swim Center will not be available as of November, and the September date has not been 
confirmed.  Staff expects to have updates on 2020 meeting locations at the next meeting.  

MOTION: Vice Chair Mathews; Second, Director Romanini.  To approve the 
consent agenda.  Motion passed unanimously. 

Motion: Vice Chair Mathews; Second, Director Baskin.  To approve proposed 
Policy on Response to Requests From Other Agencies for MGA Written Support, 
Comment, or Position.  Motion passed unanimously.  

Motion: Director Daniels; Second, Director Romanini.  To approve the meeting 
schedule for 2020.  Motion passed unanimously 
 



Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency  
Board Meeting Minutes – January 16, 2020 
Page 3 of 5  
 
 
6. Informational Updates 

6.1 Treasurer’s Report 
 
Treasurer Leslie Strohm was present; there were no substantive questions regarding the 
Treasurer’s Report. 
 

6.2 Staff Reports 
6.2.1 Montgomery & Associates Scope of Work and Cost to Prepare 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan Annual Reporting (Water Year 
2019) 
 

Staff provided an update on work by Montgomery & Associates to prepare the first annual 
report on the Santa Cruz Mid-County Basin (Basin) Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
(GSP), which is due by April 1, 2020.  This work was anticipated and $50,000 was included 
as a line item in the annual budget.  In December, Montgomery & Associates submitted a 
proposal for this work, which is in the Board packet. 
 
When the MGA does not have a specific policy it follows the policy of the SqCWD.  Under  
SqCWD policy, the General Manager is authorized to approve items up to certain dollar 
thresholds if it was included in the approved annual budget.  As this work met this 
criteria, the SqCWD General Manager has authorized the work, and it appears here as an 
informational item rather than a general business item.  Four main tasks are identified in 
the scope of work, as well as optional tasks.  The approved work did not include the 
optional tasks, and is not yet clear if staff or Montgomery & Associates will be responsible 
for those tasks.  
 
 Has it been decided yet whether staff will handle the optional items? 
 

• The optional items are not being considered at this time.  Staff wanted to be 
transparent, but the optional items may come back to the Board. 
 

 Will the annual report come to the Board?   
 

• Yes.  Whether staff or Montgomery and Associates handle the optional tasks, 
either way the report will come to Board at the March meeting, prior to 
submittal to DWR on April 1st.  

 
Member of the public Becky Steinbruner asked if the annual report will include certain 
information required in the annual report, and if the MGA has identified specific wells to 
be included.  
 
Staff provided monitoring updates. In recent years, the Resource Conservation District of 
Santa Cruz County (RCD) contracted with Trout Unlimited to conduct monitoring on 



Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency  
Board Meeting Minutes – January 16, 2020 
Page 4 of 5  
 
 
Soquel Creek. The monitoring locations correlate loosely with the proposed monitoring 
locations in the GSP. The RCD’s grant funding for this work has ended and absent new 
funding Trout Unlimited will have to discontinue this monitoring.  As these sites have 
rating curves already established, and may turn out to be good sites for GSP monitoring, 
staff proposed that the MGA contract with and fund Trout Unlimited to continue to 
conduct this monitoring. The cost is estimated to be $25,000, and there is funding 
remaining in the GSP monitoring budget.  The data will inform assessments of streamflow 
conditions and serve to inform the MGA’s ongoing assessments of Basin conditions. 
 
Staff reported that a short-summary version of the GSP (approximately 8 pages) is 
currently being reviewed and will be available for the next Board meeting.  Also, the 
transition from planning to implementation has resulted in limited, if any, public 
participation at the monthly Community Drop-In hours.  Staff anticipates transitioning to 
an as-needed approach, perhaps offering information sessions on specific topics of interest 
to the public.  
 
 Will the GSP summary be available online? 
 

• Yes.  It will be posted on the MGA website, sent via e-blast to the MGA 
subscriber list, and about 500 copies will be printed, since it is meant to last 
for several years.  

 
 Will it be available online before next meeting? 
 

• Yes.  It should be ready in February and could go out once it is done. 
 
 A request was made that the summary be sent to Board members before being 
 posted online. 
 
 It was recommended that staff outreach be designed to enable community 
 members to identify issues of interest.   
 

• Previous surveys identified metering as a key issue of interest; once that was 
not on the table, participation levels dropped significantly.   
 

Staff reported on submittal of the GSP through the SGMA portal, which involved several 
changes to the portal along the way. The decision to include all public comments and MGA 
responses was a detailed process, including review of responses by legal counsel.  
Montgomery & Associates and MGA staff is working together on submitting the final GSP 
to the Department of Water Resources via the online SGMA portal.  While on track for 
submittal before the January 31 deadline, there several items that need to be finalized 
before submitting to DWR.  
 



Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency  
Board Meeting Minutes – January 16, 2020 
Page 5 of 5  
 
 
Staff reminded directors that all Form 700 filings, which are due April 1st, must be made 
electronically with the County this year. Directors with questions should contact Laura 
Partch or the County. 
 
Member of the public Becky Steinbruner requested verification that California Statewide 
Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (CASGEM) well information would migrate to the 
GSP, and asked if the MGA will respond to public comments on the Basin GSP submitted 
through the DWR website. 
 

• The MGA intends to report to DWR any of the required well information. The 
question of whether the MGA will respond to public comments on the Basin 
GSP submitted through the DWR website has not been discussed yet.  The 
decision may be based on whether the comments are duplicative of questions 
already responded to by the MGA.  The Executive Team will discuss this a 
future MGA Executive Team meeting. 
 

• DWR must post a GSP within 20 days of submittal, after which there is a 60-
day public comment period.  

 
Staff reported that as MGA shifts from planning to implementation, staffing levels are 
changing.  Darcy Pruitt’s position is ending.  Darcy was thanked her for all her hard work 
on the development of the Plan, and she expressed appreciation for the team effort.  
 
Staff reported on a DWR update that they had received grant requests totaling $53 million 
for $50 million in funds, so that MGA chances of funding are very good. 
 
7. Future Agenda Items 
 
The Board will be taking an initial look at the MGA’s annual budget for fiscal year 
2020/21 at the March meeting, with budget approval for 2020/21 anticipated for the June 
2020 Board meeting.   
 
The Executive Team is looking at community engagement, what kinds of things the MGA 
can be doing and how to incorporate these activities as the MGA plans for the future. 

 
8. Written Communications and Submitted Materials 
 
No comments. 
       
9. Adjournment at 7:34.  
 
    



June 18, 2020 

MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Subject: Agenda Item 4.2 

Title: Acknowledge Member Agency Board Appointments 

The Joint Powers Agreement of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency 
provides for each member agency to appoint two directors and one alternate director 
to the Board of Directors.  The current member agency appointments are: 

Soquel Creek Water District 
• Tom LaHue
• Bruce Daniels
• Carla Christensen (Alternate)

City of Santa Cruz 
• Cynthia Mathews
• David Baskin
• Doug Engfer (Alternate)

Central Water District 
• Robert Marani
• Marco Romanini
• John Benich (Alternate)

County of Santa Cruz 
• First District Supervisor – John Leopold
• Second District Supervisor – Zach Friend
• Allyson Violante (Alternate)

Possible Board Actions: 

1. Informational, no action necessary.

By ___________________________________ 
Tim Carson 
Program Director 
Regional Water Management Foundation 





https://www.pvwater.org/college-lake-project




https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/hearings/collegelake/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/hearings/collegelake/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/hearings/collegelake/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/hearings/collegelake/












mailto:wrhearing@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:DWR@waterboards.ca.gov


mailto:wrhearing@waterboards.ca.gov
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB434
mailto:lisa.hong@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:nicole.kuenzi@waterboards.ca.gov
http://www.calepa.ca.gov/headquarters-sacramento/location/


mailto:moises.moreno-rivera@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:moises.moreno-rivera@waterboards.ca.gov
https://video.calepa.ca.gov/


June 18, 2020  

MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Subject: Agenda Item 5.1 

Title:   Review Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and Preliminary Budget for 
2020-2021 

Attachments 
1. Table 1. Budget Summary FY 2019/20 and proposed FY 2020/21
2. Table 2. Operating Expenses FY 2019/20 and proposed FY 2020/21

The budget for fiscal year 2019-2020 (FY 19/20) and a proposed budget for 2020-2021 
(FY 20/21) for the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (MGA) is presented 
in the attached tables and in the supporting narrative. The format of Tables 1 and 2 
are consistent with the budget previously presented to the Board.  The Operating 
Expenses major tasks are slightly recategorized to reflect the activities as the MGA 
shifts from planning to implementation. 

The FY 19/20 projected operating expenses ($513,517) are less than the amount 
budgeted ($650,415) by $136,898. Unspent funds from FY 19/20 will roll over into 
Beginning Reserves for FY 20/21. The projected operating expenses for 2020/21 are 
$725,000 which is an increase over FY 19/20 by $74,585 or 11.5%. The increase is 
due to costs anticipated with the expansion of the monitoring network (installing 
new groundwater monitoring wells and stream gages) and, to a lesser extent, costs 
related to coordinating monitoring data and implementing a data management 
system.  Both the monitoring network expansion and the data management system 
will be funded, in part, by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) grants. 

The following narrative summarizes the MGA’s beginning cash reserves, operating 
revenue, operating expenses, and ending reserves. 

BEGINNING RESERVES  
Beginning cash reserves for the MGA for FY 20/21 are projected to be $1,474,190.  
The beginning reserves amount is the surplus of revenue collected from the prior year 
over the actual expenses incurred during that year.  

OPERATING REVENUE 
Operating revenue in the proposed FY 20/21 budget is comprised solely of expected 
DWR grant awards of $500,000. Unlike prior fiscal years, no member agency 
revenue contribution is proposed for FY 20/21.  Instead, the agency intends to use 
reserves from prior fiscal years to partially fund the FY 20/21 expenses.  The agency 



Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 2 of 8 

reserves are from unspent agency membership revenue contributed in prior fiscal 
years and grants from DWR.  

The grant funding from DWR, which is reimbursed in arrears, is for the 
development and implementation of the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP). 
The MGA has an active grant with DWR for $2,000,000 to fund the development of 
the GSP and initial implementation efforts, including expanding the monitoring 
network by installing new groundwater monitoring wells and stream gages. For FY 
19/20, the anticipated grant revenue was initially estimated at $1,350,000, but is 
now conservatively estimated at $764,544 in FY 19/20 with the additional funds to 
be received in FY 20/21 and 21/22. DWR withholds 10% of the award as a retention 
until the grant is fully completed and closed-out.  The retention payment of 
$200,000 (10% of $2M) is not anticipated until FY 22/23. 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Administration 
This budget category includes the costs related to the administration of the MGA, 
including administrative staff support, finance staff support and related expenses, 
insurance, organizational memberships and conferences, as well as miscellaneous 
supplies and materials. 

FY 19/20: The total cost of this category is $139,415. 

FY 20/21: The proposed cost of this category is $145,000, an increase of 5% or 
$5,585.  

Costs include core staff support from the Regional Water Management Foundation, 
a subsidiary of the Community Foundation of Santa Cruz County (CFSCC), to 
provide agency administrative support in similar roles and functions as in prior 
years. Supporting staff include the Program Director and Administrative Officer 
(FY 19/20 $118,500; FY 20/21 $120,000).  

The SqCWD Finance Manager will continue as the Treasurer for the MGA and will 
be responsible, with support from the SqCWD Finance staff, for the accounting and 
billing functions for the agency.  This budget category includes finance-related costs 
including accounting software and the annual financial audit.  

Also included is the annual membership dues for the Association of California 
Water Agencies (ACWA) and the annual insurance costs from the Association of 
California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA). 



Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 3 of 8 

The budget includes amounts for miscellaneous office supplies and expenses, 
software/online services, professional conference fees (e.g., ACWA), meeting-related 
expenses and various other expenses outside of the scope of the other operating 
expense categories.  

Legal Support 
Legal counsel from the County of Santa Cruz will continue to provide legal services 
as needed. If legal counsel specific to groundwater or the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (SGMA) is necessary, or if there is a conflict of interest, then the 
MGA will seek other legal support services. 

FY 19/20 and FY 20/21: The $20,000 budget and tasks are the same in both years. 

Management and Coordination  
This category, previously named Technical Work, includes hydrologic technical 
support, groundwater modeling, and, beginning in FY 20/21, includes planning and 
program support for the GSP implementation. 

Hydrologic Technical Support 
FY 19/20: Montgomery & Associates is providing technical support for issues related 
to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) but separate from the 
development of the GSP. The initial amount of $10,000 was increased to $16,500 to 
allow for additional support from M&A related to the DWR’s SGMA portal and 
coordination with MGA and DWR, and related tasks. 

FY 20/21: The proposed budget includes Montgomery & Associates continuing to 
provide, as needed, hydrologic technical support.  

Groundwater Model  
FY 19/20: The budget includes $25,000 for Montgomery & Associates to provide 
additional groundwater modeling and simulations to inform planning and Basin 
management.   

FY 20/21: The budget includes $15,000 for Montgomery & Associates to conduct 
groundwater modeling as needed to inform the preparation of the GSP Annual 
Report. . 

Planning and Program Support for GSP Implementation 
FY 19/20: No budget allocation for this task. 

FY 20/21: This task allocates funding for MGA member agency staff and RWMF 
staff to conduct activities, as needed, to support GSP implementation efforts.   



Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 4 of 8 

Initial GSP Development & Related Activities 
This category includes work in support of the completion of the initial Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan. The GSP was successfully submitted to DWR in January 2020. 

Senior Planner / Staff Support 
FY 19/20: The budget included work performed by RWMF staff to complete the 
GSP, the SGM Planning Round 3 proposal, and related planning activities. 

FY 20/21: No budget allocation for this task. 

Technical Support for GSP 

FY 19/20: The MGA Board approved a contract with Montgomery & Associates 
(formerly HydroMetrics WRI, Inc.) in September 2017 to provide technical support 
and assist with the development of sections of the GSP. The Board subsequently 
approved amendments to the contract increasing the total from $508,100 to 
$577,100. The amount expended in FY 19/20, $98,100, will expend the full contract 
amount. This task is complete. 

FY 20/21: No budget allocation. 

GSP Advisory Committee Facilitation Support 

In September 2017, the MGA Board approved a contract with Kearns & West 
(K&W) to provide process planning and facilitation support related to the GSP 
development and the GSP Advisory Committee.  

FY 19/20: $28,000 was budgeted for K&W planning and facilitation support which 
included funding for potential support extending into summer and fall after the 
GSP Advisory Committee’s final meeting in June 2019. The additional facilitation 
was not required; the amount expended was $4,593. 

FY 20/21: No budget allocation. 

Graphical Support 
This task was intended to support the development of graphics to inform decision 
making and to convey complex information in the GSP. 

FY 19/20: The $50,000 budgeted for this task was not used. A short summary of the 
GSP written for the general public was developed to summarize the GSP 
development process, key findings and recommendations to facilitate the public’s 



Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 5 of 8 

understanding of the GSP.  This summary was funded out of the Outreach and 
Education budget.  

FY 20/21: No budget allocation. 

Monitoring: Network Expansion, Data Collection, Analysis & Management 

Monitoring: Network Expansion  
FY 19/20: $100,000 was budgeted to support preliminary work on the proposed 
shallow groundwater monitoring wells and stream gages such as location access and 
potential easement acquisition, permits, preliminary system designs, and other 
work necessary prior to the installation of surface water-groundwater monitoring 
system(s). This work was delayed in starting and is anticipated to be conducted in 
FY 20/21. It is anticipated this work would be performed by consultant(s) working 
in coordination with member agency staff.  

FY 20/21: $295,000 is budgeted for this task. With funding support from the grant 
from DWR, the proposed monitoring network expansion will include the wells and 
stream gages (as proposed in FY 19/20) as well as additional monitoring wells and 
stream gages to address gaps in the current monitoring network as identified in the 
GSP.   

Monitoring: Streamflow Upper Soquel Creek Watershed 
Trout Unlimited (TU) will monitor streamflow at up to four sites to characterize dry 
season low flow conditions in the Upper Soquel Creek drainage network (May 
through October 2020). This will include approximately monthly field visits to 
collect streamflow measurements, record staff plate readings, photo document site 
conditions, and to download data from each gage. TU will develop and update rating 
curves and streamflow datasets for each gage and provide the data to the MGA. TU 
will provide a brief report summarizing streamflow conditions in the Upper Soquel 
Creek watershed during the dry season for water year 2020. The total cost for this 
work is $25,000. 

FY 19/20: $12,500 is allocated for this work. 

FY 20/21: $12,500 is allocated for this work. 

Data Coordination & Data Management System 
This work will include conducting a data management assessment and developing a 
data management plan that is based upon the monitoring protocols in the GSP. 
Work will include an evaluation of Data Management Systems (DMS) for GSP-



Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 6 of 8 

related data sets. This will include an evaluation of the commercial software 
platform Water Information Systems by Kisters (WISKI) to support the 
management and analyses of groundwater elevation, groundwater quality, 
groundwater extractions, streamflow, and weather data. Funding from the second 
DWR grant ($95,000) will support the evaluation, assessment, and implementation 
of a DMS. 

FY 19/20: No budget allocation. 

FY 20/21: $95,000 is allocated for this task. It is anticipated the MGA will engage a 
technical consultant to support the MGA-member agency staff in conducting this 
work. This work will be principally funded by the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Program grant from DWR. 

Groundwater Extraction Metering Program 
Consistent with the GSP, this task will support the development and implementation 
of a new well metering program to facilitate consistent and reliable reporting of 
volumetric data on groundwater usage from certain non-de minimis users (users with 
annual groundwater extraction greater than 2 acre-feet) in the Basin. The program 
will apply to two categories of users: (1) all pumping operations expected to extract 
more than 5 acre-feet per year, and (2) all non-de minimis pumping operations within 
priority management zones as defined by the County of Santa Cruz and pending 
approval from the MGA Board. This program is intended to provide reliable 
extraction data to inform management and groundwater modeling of the Basin and 
to provide new data on pumping that may impact seawater intrusion or an 
interconnected stream where groundwater dependent ecosystems are identified in 
the GSP.   

FY 19/20: No budget allocation. 

FY 20/21: $27,500 is allocated for this task. Grant funding will support technical 
consultant(s) and the County of Santa Cruz Environmental Health Water Resources 
Division staff in conducting this task. Additional support, as needed, may also be 
provided by MGA staff. This work will be principally funded by the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Program grant from DWR. 

Annual Groundwater Sustainability Plan Report 
Annual reporting on the GSP implementation prior to April 1st is a requirement 
under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. The annual report was 
submitted to DWR in March 2020. The first annual report covered Water Year 
2019. 



Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 7 of 8 

FY 19/20: The initial budget for Montgomery & Associates to complete the first 
annual Groundwater Report was $50,000.  An additional $5,000, initially submitted 
as an optional task, included the cost to compile, format and submit the 
accompanying monitoring data and submittal of the annual report via the SGMA 
portal. This budget will be fully expended. 

FY 20/21: Based upon the level of effort required on the first annual report, $50,000 
is budgeted for this task.  

Community Outreach 

FY 19/20: $45,000 is budgeted to support stakeholder engagement and outreach. 
The community outreach included targeted efforts during the roll-out of the draft 
and final GSP to provide opportunities for public engagement at meetings and 
events. Costs included working with Miller Maxfield to develop the GSP summary 
document, maintaining and updating the MGA website, and meeting/event related 
expenses.  

FY 20/21: $15,000 is budgeted to continue community outreach and education. The 
number of events, printed materials, and mailers will be scaled back from recent 
years and the budget reduced accordingly.  Outreach will occur in a variety of ways, 
such as: targeted meetings/workshops (e.g., stakeholder meeting(s) related to the 
groundwater extraction metering program), the MGA website, developing 
informational materials and poster/displays, newspapers, and meeting related 
expenses (e.g., facility rentals, refreshments, other).  

ENDING RESERVES 
General Reserves 
Prudent financial management requires that the agency carry a general reserve in 
order to help manage cash flow and mitigate the risk of expense overruns in case 
actual expenses are greater than anticipated in the budget. The general reserves at 
the end of FY 19/20 are projected to be $1,441,669; this is less than projected in the 
budget presented in May 2019 as the projected operating revenue from awarded 
grants has decreased; the grant revenue will still be received but not within FY 
19/20. 

Contingency Fund 
In FY 19/20 and in recent years, the MGA budget included 5% contingency (based 
upon total Operating Expense) to cover for unanticipated expenses. In FY 20/21, the 
proposed contingency is 10% since the Operating Revenue is dependent, in part, 
upon receiving grant funding which may include unanticipated delays in 
reimbursement.   



Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 8 of 8 

Member Agency Contribution  
Unlike prior fiscal years, no member agency contribution is requested in FY 20/21. 
There are sufficient funds within the MGA’s projected Total Beginning Reserves for 
FY 20/21 that member agency contributions are not required. In future years, a 
member agency contribution will be required. In the GSP Section 5 (Plan 
Implementation), the MGA’s estimated annual Operating Cost, annualized over 5-
years, is $553,300. The DWR grants will partially offset Operating Costs in FY 
20/21 as well as FY 21/22. Longer term, member agency contributions will be 
required to fund the ongoing operating costs.   

Recommended Board Actions: 

1. By MOTION, approve the proposed preliminary planning budget for Santa
Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (MGA) for FY 2020/2021.

By ___________________________________ 
Tim Carson, Program Director 
Regional Water Management Foundation 

Prepared on behalf of the MGA Executive Team: Ron Duncan, Ralph Bracamonte, 
Rosemary Menard, and John Ricker.  



Table 1. BUDGET SUMMARY

2019/20
BUDGET

(Adopted May 
2019) 

 2019/20
PROJECTED 
TOTALS 

 2020/21
BUDGET

(PROPOSED) 

INCREASE 
(DECREASE) 
OVER PRIOR 
YEAR BUDGET 

 % CHANGE  
OVER PRIOR 
YEAR BUDGET 

Beginning Reserves
Beginning Cash Reserves 521,606$              572,748$               1,474,190$         952,584$            183%

Total Beginning Reserves 521,606$               572,748$                1,474,190$         952,584$            183%

Operating Revenue
Agency Contributions 650,415$              650,415$               ‐$ (650,415)$           ‐100%
Awarded Grants 1,350,000$           764,544$               500,000$            (850,000)$           ‐63%

Total Operating Revenue 2,000,415$           1,414,959$            500,000$            (1,500,415)$        ‐75%

Operating Expense
Administration 139,415$              139,415$               145,000$            5,585$                 4%
Legal 20,000$                 3,500  20,000                ‐ 0%
Management & Coordination  35,000$                 41,645  65,000                30,000                86%
Initial GSP Development & Related Activities 261,000$              231,457                 ‐ (261,000)            ‐100%

100,000$              12,500  430,000 330,000 330%
GSP Annual Report 50,000$                 55,000  50,000                ‐ 0%
Community Outreach 45,000$                 30,000  15,000                (30,000) ‐67%

Total Operating Expense 650,415$               513,517$                725,000$            74,585$               11%

Ending Reserves
Contingency 32,521 32,521  72,500                39,979$              123%
General Reserve 1,839,085 1,441,669 1,176,690          (662,395)$           ‐36%

Total Ending Reserves 1,871,606$           1,474,190$            1,249,190$         (622,416)$           ‐33%

SANTA CRUZ MID‐COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
BUDGET SUMMARY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RESERVES
FISCAL YEAR 2019/2020 AND PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2020/21 BUDGET

Monitoring (Network expansion, data mgmt.)

AGENDA ITEM 5.1.1



Table 2. OPERATING EXPENSES

 2019/20
BUDGET
(Adopted 
May 2019) 

 2019/20
PROJECTED 
TOTALS 

 2020/21
BUDGET

(PROPOSED) 

 INCREASE 
(DECREASE) 
OVER PRIOR 

YEAR 
BUDGET 

 % CHANGE  
OVER PRIOR 
YEAR BUDGET 

Operating Expense
Administration 139,415$      139,415$            145,000$            5,585$         4%
Legal 20,000$        3,500.00$           20,000$              ‐$ 0%
Management & Coordination 

Technical Work: Hydrologic Support 10,000         16,500$               10,000                ‐
Technical Work: Groundwater Model   25,000         25,145$               15,000                (10,000)      
Planning/Program Staff Support ‐ ‐$   40,000                40,000       

subtotal 35,000$        41,645$              65,000$              30,000$       86%
Initial GSP Development & Related Activities

RWMF Senior Planner & Staff 154,000       128,764$            ‐ (154,000)    
Technical Support for GSP 29,000         98,100$               ‐ (29,000)      
GSP Advisory Committee Facilitation Support 28,000         4,593$                 ‐ (28,000)      
Graphical Support  50,000         ‐$   ‐ (50,000)      

subtotal 261,000$      231,457$            ‐$ (261,000)$   ‐100%
Monitoring: Network Expansion, Data Collection, Analysis & Management

Monitoring Network Improvements (new wells & 
stream gages) 100,000         ‐$   295,000               195,000       
Monitoring: Streamflow Upper Soquel Creek 
Watershed ‐  12,500$                12,500                 12,500         

Data Coordination & Data Management System ‐  ‐$   95,000                 95,000         

Groundwater Extraction Metering Program ‐  ‐$   27,500                 27,500         
subtotal 100,000$      12,500$              430,000$            330,000$     330%

GSP Annual Report 50,000$        55,000$              50,000$              ‐$ 0%
Community Outreach 45,000$        30,000$              15,000$              (30,000)$      ‐67%

‐
Total Operating Expense 650,415$     513,517$           725,000$           74,585$      11%

SANTA CRUZ MID‐COUNTY GROUNDWATER AGENCY
OPERATING EXPENSES

FISCAL YEAR 2019/2020 AND PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2020/21 BUDGET

AGENDA ITEM 5.1.2



June 18, 2020  

MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Subject: Agenda Item 5.2 

Title:   Ratify Santa Cruz Mid-County Basin Water Year 2019 Annual Report 

Background 
The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) requires Groundwater 
Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) to submit an Annual Report to the Department of 
Water Resources (DWR) by April 1 following adoption of a Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan (GSP).  The Annual Report should provide data on groundwater 
conditions and a narrative description of the GSA’s progress toward implementation 
of the GSP for the prior water year.  

For the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (MGA), which recently 
submitted to DWR a GSP for the Santa Cruz Mid-County Basin (Basin), the first 
annual report covers the period from October 1, 2018 through September 30, 2019 
(Water Year 2019). Montgomery & Associates was engaged by the MGA to prepare 
the first Annual Report.  

The Annual Report is posted on the website at: 
http://www.midcountygroundwater.org/sites/default/files/uploads/WY2019_MGA_An
nualReportFinal_web.pdf 

Executive Summary 
The Executive Summary of the Annual Report presents the following information.  
DWR lists the Basin as a high priority basin in critical overdraft. The high priority 
designation indicates that water users in the Basin have high dependence on 
groundwater. The Basin is listed in critical overdraft principally because active 
seawater intrusion impacts its productive aquifers as a result of historical over-
pumping of the aquifers. 

Several factors have improved groundwater conditions based on rising groundwater 
levels in the Basin in Water Year 2019 when compared to most recent conditions 
shown in the GSP (Water Years 2016 and 2017). 

1. Water use and therefore groundwater pumping has been historically low over
the last five water years.

http://www.midcountygroundwater.org/sites/default/files/uploads/WY2019_MGA_AnnualReportFinal_web.pdf
http://www.midcountygroundwater.org/sites/default/files/uploads/WY2019_MGA_AnnualReportFinal_web.pdf


Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

2. Water Year 2019 is classified as a wet year, which is the 2nd wet year in 3
years.

3. Pilot tests were conducted that provided surface water from outside the Basin
into the Basin as groundwater recharge and for in-lieu use to reduce
groundwater pumping.

Despite improving groundwater conditions, undesirable results for seawater 
intrusion continue to occur in the Basin based on chloride concentrations and 
coastal groundwater elevations. The Basin continues to be in a state of critical 
overdraft. In addition, the GSP calls for redistribution of groundwater pumping as 
an action to prevent significant and unreasonable seawater intrusion based on 
chloride concentrations exceeding trigger levels in Water Year 2019. 

Net groundwater pumping remains above sustainable yields in two of the three 
aquifer groups. Planning for implementation of projects included in the GSP to 
achieve sustainability by reducing net groundwater pumping continued in 2019.  
Planning for projects included pilot testing being conducted for Pure Water Soquel, 
Aquifer Storage and Recovery, and Water Transfers / In-Lieu Groundwater 
Recharge. 

Recommended Board Actions: 

1. By MOTION, receive the Santa Cruz Mid-County Basin Water Year 2019
Annual Report, and

2. By MOTION, ratify the submittal of a transmittal letter and the
accompanying Basin Water Year 2019 Annual Report from the Basin Point to
Contact to DWR in accordance with California Code of Regulations, Tit. 23,
secs. 353.4 and 356.2.

By ___________________________________ 
Tim Carson 
Program Director 
Regional Water Management Foundation 



June 18, 2020 

MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Subject: Agenda Item 5.3 

Title:   Approve Montgomery & Associates Contract Change Order 

Attachment: 
1. Montgomery & Associates Cost Estimate for Annual Report

At the January 16, 2020, meeting of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater 
Agency (MGA) Board of Directors, staff reported that Montgomery & Associates had 
been engaged to prepare the first Annual Report for the Santa Cruz Mid-County 
Groundwater Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP). The cost to prepare the 
Annual Report for Water Year 2019 was $50,000.   

The Soquel Creek Water District (SqCWD) Procurement Policy, which the MGA 
operates under, permits the General Manager to approve contracts up to $50,000 
provided it is included in the approved annual budget.  As the contract for the Annual 
Report met these criteria, and the Executive Team was unanimous in its support of 
the proposed work, the SqCWD General Manager authorized the work. The contract 
appeared as an informational item on the January 16th agenda. 

The scope of work provided by Montgomery & Associates for the Annual Report 
included several optional items. Staff reported at the January meeting that the 
optional items were still under consideration and not approved, but if the Executive 
Team determined it was preferable for Montgomery and Associates to perform any of 
the optional tasks, the item would come back to the Board for approval. 

One of the three optional tasks was to upload the Annual Report, which included 
compiling and preparing the related monitoring data, to DWR. The cost for 
Montgomery & Associates to perform this task was $4,940.  

Because a Contract Change Order (CCO) for $5,000 brings the total for the contract 
above the $50,000 threshold for SqCWD General Manager approval, the CCO 
requires Board approval. 

With Board approval, staff will proceed with issuing a CCO in the amount of $5,000, 
bringing the total amount of Montgomery and Associates contract for the first GSP 
Annual Report to $55,000.  



Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

Recommended Board Action: 

1. Approve the issuance of a CCO in the amount of $5,000 for Montgomery &
Associates for work in support of the submittal of the GSP first Annual
Report.

By ___________________________________ 
Tim Carson 
Program Director 
Regional Water Management Foundation 



Cost Estimate for GSP Annual Reporting (Water Year 2019)
Cameron Tana Georgina King Modeler

 
Hydrogeologist Drafting / GIS

Scientist 7 Scientist 6 Scientist 3 Scientist 3
Hydrologic 
Technician

215$                 205$                 135$            135$                 100$                 
1.0 Evaluate Monitoring Well Data

1.01 Obtain monitoring well data (levels and quality) 0 1 0 4 0 5 -$          745$              
1.02 Prepare contour maps 2 4 0 16 12 34 -$          4,610$           
1.03 Prepare hydrographs and tables 2 3 0 16 0 21 -$          3,205$           
1.04 Tabulate monitoring well data vs. sustainable management criteria 4 4 0 16 0 24 -$          3,840$           

Task 1 Subtotals 8 12 0 52 12 84 -$          12,400$         

2.0 Quantify Water Demand and Supply
2.01 Obtain municipal pumping and surface water transfer and injection data 0 1 0 2 0 3 -$          475$              
2.02 Estimate non-municipal pumping (based on 3.02) 1 4 8 0 0 13 -$          2,115$           
2.03 Estimate additional water demands 0 2 4 0 0 6 -$          950$              
2.04 Prepare tables and update graphs of water demand and supply 1 2 0 0 8 11 -$          1,425$           
2.05 Prepare groundwater pumping map 1 2 0 0 4 7 -$          1,025$           

2.07
Tablulate net pumping vs. sustainable management criteria for 
groundwater in storage 1 2 0 0 4 7 -$          1,025$           

Task 2 Subtotals 4 13 12 2 16 47 -$          7,015$           
3.0 Extend GSFLOW Basin Model and Estimate Change of Groundwater in Storage

3.01 Update precip and temp data input for WY 2017-2019 1 2 24 0 0 27 -$          3,865$           
3.02 Run PRMS only to estimate irrigation demand (Task 2.02) 1 2 16 0 0 19 -$          2,785$           
3.03 Calculate return flow 1 4 8 0 0 13 -$          2,115$           
3.04 Update pumping and injection model input 2 0 36 0 0 38 -$          5,290$           
3.05 Run GSFLOW 1 0 4 0 0 5 -$          755$              
3.06 Prepare change of groundwater in storage maps 2 4 20 0 8 34 -$          4,750$           
3.07 Prepare graphs of groundwater in storage 2 4 4 0 12 22 -$          2,990$           

Task 3 Subtotals 10 16 112 0 20 158 -$          22,550$         
4.0 Prepare Report

4.01 Prepare draft report for MGA and member agency staff review 4 4 8 16 8 40 -$          5,720$           
4.02 Prepare executive summary 2 1 0 0 0 3 -$          635$              
4.03 Prepare final report for MGA Board approval 2 2 2 2 3 11 -$          1,680$           

Task 4 Subtotals 8 7 10 18 11 54 -$          8,035$           

TOAL QUANTITY 30 48 134 72 59 343
TOTAL COST 6,450$              9,840$              18,090$       9,720$              5,900$              -$          50,000$         

5.0 Optional Tasks
5.01 Prepare description of implementation of projects or management actions 6 2 0 0 4 12 -$          2,100$           
5.02 Present at MGA Board 1 10 1 1 3 16 120$          2,955$           
5.03 Upload to DWR 1 8 0 7 22 38 -$          5,000$           

No. Description Hours Expenses TOTAL

3/2/2020

AGENDA ITEM 5.3.1



June 18, 2020 

MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Subject: Agenda Item 5.4 

Title: Approve Contract for Administrative and Staff Support from the 
Regional Water Management Foundation in FY 2020/21 

Attachment: 
1. Proposed Scope of Work Regional Water Management Foundation

The Regional Water Management Foundation (RWMF) proposes to continue 
providing administrative and staff support to the Santa Cruz Mid-County 
Groundwater Agency (MGA) in fiscal year (FY) 2020/21.  

A summary of the RWMF’s proposed tasks in FY 2020/21 are discussed below. 

Administrative Support  
This task includes work related to the administration of the MGA. This task 
includes support related to the Board of Directors’ meeting preparation and 
logistics, such as the distribution of meeting notices, compilation of packets and 
agendas, meeting materials, room set-up, and the preparation of minutes. This task 
includes support related to soliciting, selecting, and contracting with consultants 
and contractors. Work will include support on the development and updates to 
policy and administrative procedures. The task includes routine coordination and 
communications with the MGA executive staff representatives on administrative 
matters and coordination, as needed, with the MGA counsel. The task also includes 
support on the management of electronic and hard-copy files of the MGA. Routine 
meetings and communications with the following are anticipated: MGA executive 
staff representatives; MGA staff working group; Board of Directors and Alternates; 
MGA committees; Department of Water Resources (DWR); consultants; local 
agencies; members of the public.  

GSP Planning Grant Administration and Reporting 
The task is to administer the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) grant on 
behalf of the MGA. The RWMF serves as the lead administrative contact and will 
coordinate with DWR on the grant administration. Administrative support tasks 
include: management of the grant agreement and any potential amendments with 
DWR; collection of information to complete quarterly progress reports and invoices; 
review, compilation and submittal of invoices DWR; tracking grant budget and 
payments; compiling grant compliance documentation; participating in meetings 



Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 

and/or conference calls with DWR, the MGA member agencies, and consultants; 
maintaining grant related records, and grant deliverables.  

Planning and Program Support for GSP Implementation 
This task includes staff support as the MGA proceeds in the first year of the GSP 
implementation. Groundwater Sustainability Agencies are responsible for 
implementation of the GSP. Under the MGA’s Joint Powers Authority agreement 
and the collaborative staffing framework, it is anticipated that there will be staff 
support needs as the MGA transitions from the planning into the implementation 
phase. The specific tasks and support will be at the direction of the MGA Executive 
Team and Board. This is anticipated to include, but is not limited to, coordination 
related to GSP implementation on tasks such as, staff support related to Basin 
monitoring, Data Management System development, Groundwater Extraction 
Metering Program development and implementation, and the annual GSP 
reporting. This work is not principally administrative and is proposed to be funded 
under the FY 20/21 Management and Coordination budget. 

Stakeholder Engagement and Outreach 
This task includes planning and coordinating stakeholder engagement and 
outreach, such as, stakeholder drop-in sessions, meetings, workshops, and events 
related to the GSP implementation. Work may include activities such as 
participation in the planning, review, and/or development of outreach materials 
and/or providing input to member agency staff/consultants supporting stakeholder 
outreach. This task includes assisting with and supporting member agency 
staff/consultants in the distribution of outreach materials through various media 
such as electronic newsletter (e-blast), brochures, the MGA website, and social 
media.  

Other 
This task is less defined by intention as it is anticipated there will be miscellaneous 
activities that do not align with the other categories but that are relevant and 
consistent with the agreed upon intent to provide administrative and staff support 
for the MGA. Included is participation in workshops, conferences, and related 
events that pertain to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act and are 
relevant to the MGA. 

Budget 
The annual estimated cost by position, estimated hours, and hourly rates are below. 
Services are provided on a time (hours worked) and materials basis. The actual 
hours by task and position may vary from the estimated hours; however, the cost 
will not exceed the total below without written authorization of the MGA.   



Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 

Position Classification Hourly 
Rate 

Hours 
(estimated) Amount 

Agency Administration 
Program Director $120 625 $75,000 
Administrative Officer $70 625 $43,750 
Expenses $1,250 

subtotal $120,000 
Planning and Program Support for GSP Implementation 
Program Director $120 80 $9,600 

subtotal $9,600 
Total $129,600 

The Executive Team recommends a sole-source procurement for staffing support 
from the RWMF to continue to provide administrative support, planning and 
program support, and grant administration services to the MGA.  

The reasons for this recommendation include: 
1. The proposed services remain consistent with the intent of the prior 2016

Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the MGA and the RWMF, a 
subsidiary of the Community Foundation Santa Cruz County. The proposed 
approach is consistent with the intent for administrative support and 
collaborative staffing approach in the MGA Bylaws. 

2. The RWMF is uniquely qualified with capabilities, based upon work previously
performed, to maintain continuity in the MGA’s administration.

3. The services provided to date have been satisfactorily performed. It would be
costly and time consuming to bring a new entity on board to provide the
administrative, planning and grant administrative services.

Staff recommends that the Board approve the contract (Attachment 1). 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: 

1. By MOTION, authorize the Board Chair to execute the contract not to exceed
$129,600 with the RWMF for the scope of work in Attachment 1; and



Board of Directors 
June 18, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 

2. By MOTION, authorize the General Manager of Soquel Creek Water District
to sign a purchase order for the work to be performed by the RWMF in the
amount indicated in the above motion.

By ___________________________ 

Ron Duncan 
General Manager 
Soquel Creek Water District 





2 

reporting. This work is not principally administrative and is proposed to be funded 
under the FY 20/21 Management and Coordination budget. 

Stakeholder Engagement and Outreach 
This task includes planning and conducting stakeholder engagement and outreach, 
such as, stakeholder drop-in sessions, meetings, workshops, and events related to 
the GSP implementation. Work may include activities such as participation in the 
planning, review, and/or development of outreach materials and/or providing input 
to member agency staff/consultants supporting stakeholder outreach. This task 
includes assisting with and supporting member agency staff/consultants in the 
distribution of outreach materials through various media such as electronic 
newsletter (e-blast), brochures, the MGA website, and social media.  

Other 
This task is less defined by intention as it is anticipated there will be miscellaneous 
activities that do not align with the other categories but that are relevant and 
consistent with the agreed upon intent to provide administrative and staff support 
for the MGA. Included is participation in workshops, conferences, and related 
events that pertain to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act and are 
relevant to the MGA. 

Budget 
The annual estimated cost by position, estimated hours, and hourly rates are below. 
Services are provided on a time (hours worked) and materials basis. The actual 
hours by task and position may vary from the estimated hours however the cost will 
not exceed the total below without written authorization of the MGA.   

Position Classification Hourly 
Rate 

Hours 
(estimated) Amount 

Agency Administration 
Program Director $120 625 $75,000 
Administrative Officer $70 625 $43,750 
Expenses $1,250 

subtotal $120,000 
Planning and Program Support for GSP Implementation 
Program Director $120 80 $9,600 

subtotal $9,600 
Total $129,600 



June 18, 2020 

MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Subject:  Agenda Item 6.1 

Title:   Treasurer’s Report   

Attachment: 
1. Treasurer’s Report for the Period Ending May 31, 2020

Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for January through May 2020.  There was no 
meeting at which to present a Treasurer’s Report in March 2020.  The report contains 
three sections: 

• Statement of Changes in Revenues, Expenses and Net Position
o This interim financial statement provides information on the revenue

that has been invoiced to the member agencies and the expenses that
have been recorded as of May 31, 2020.

• Statement of Net Position
o This interim financial statement details the cash balance at Wells Fargo

Bank, the depository institution for the Santa Cruz Mid-County
Groundwater Agency (MGA), the membership revenue still owed
through accounts receivable, prepaid expenses such as insurance, and
the resulting net income as reported on the Statement of Changes in
Revenues, Expenses and Net Position from the preceding page.

• Warrants
o The list of warrants reflects all payments made by the MGA, either by

check or electronic means, for the period covered by the Treasurer’s
Report.

The Treasurer’s Report will be provided at each board meeting according to statutory 
requirement and to promote transparency of the agency’s financial transactions.   

Recommended Board Action: 

1. Informational, no action necessary.

By ___________________________________ 
Leslie Strohm 

     Treasurer 
     Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency 



Treasurer's Report
Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency
For the period ended May 31, 2020

Prepared on

June 10, 2020

AGENDA ITEM 6.1.1



Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency 2/6

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
January - May, 2020

Total

INCOME

Total Income

GROSS PROFIT 0.00

EXPENSES

5100 Groundwater Management Services 6,390.00

5120 Grndwtr Mgmt - Groundwater Model 1,840.00

5300 Administrative Personnel Services 14,170.82

5315 Office Services 336.38

5340 Computer Services 140.00

5345 Professional Organizations 1,382.50

5410 Outreach Supplies 1,178.81

5415 Outreach Services 3,412.50

5510 GSP Consulting Services 21,242.50

5520 Legal Services 312.50

Total Expenses 50,406.01

NET OPERATING INCOME -50,406.01

OTHER INCOME

4400 Grant Revenue 768,855.13

Total Other Income 768,855.13

NET OTHER INCOME 768,855.13

NET INCOME $718,449.12



Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency 3/6

Statement of Net Position
As of May 31, 2020

Total

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

1100 Wells Fargo Business Checking 1,646,206.21

Total Bank Accounts 1,646,206.21

Other Current Assets

1400 Prepaid Expenses 1,758.24

Total Other Current Assets 1,758.24

Total Current Assets 1,647,964.45

TOTAL ASSETS $1,647,964.45

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity

Retained Earnings 572,748.38

Net Income 1,075,216.07

Total Equity 1,647,964.45

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $1,647,964.45



Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency 4/6

Warrants
January - May, 2020

Date Transaction Type Num Name Memo/Description Clr Amount

Bill Payment (Check)

04/07/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10202 Sentinel Printers Inc R -278.59

-278.59

04/03/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10200
Errol L Montgomery & 
Associates Inc R -29,472.50

-29,472.50

04/03/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10201 Miller Maxfield Inc. R -775.00

-775.00

03/10/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10199 Mpress Digital Inc R -900.22

-900.22

02/27/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10193 ACWA Agency Dues R -2,765.00

-2,765.00

02/27/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10194
County of Santa Cruz (County 
Counsel) Legal Services R -312.50

-312.50

02/27/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10195
Errol L Montgomery & 
Associates Inc R -5,695.00



Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency 5/6

Date Transaction Type Num Name Memo/Description Clr Amount

-5,695.00

02/27/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10196 Miller Maxfield Inc.
Public Outreach Consulting 
Jan 2020 R -2,637.50

-2,637.50

02/27/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10197
Regional Water Management 
Foundation

Administration and GSP 
Support R -14,170.82

-14,170.82

02/27/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10198
Soquel Creek Water District 
(2)

0000260 - Quickbooks 
Subscription R -70.00

-70.00

01/21/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10191 Miller Maxfield Inc.
Public Outreach Consulting 
Nov-Dec 2019 R -1,562.50

-1,562.50

01/21/2020 Bill Payment (Check) 10192
Soquel Creek Water District 
(2)

0000260 - Quickbooks 
Subscription R -70.00

-70.00

Expense

05/06/2020 Expense US0021Owh6 Google - Online Payments G Suite Subscription R -72.00



Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency 6/6

Date Transaction Type Num Name Memo/Description Clr Amount

Google Payment - G Suit 72.00

04/06/2020 Expense US001Wbq94 Google - Online Payments G Suite Subscription R -72.00

Google Payment - G Suit 72.00

03/06/2020 Expense US001V430C Google - Online Payments G Suite Subscription R -72.00

Google Payment - G Suit 72.00

02/06/2020 Expense US001 Tylmd Google - Online Payments G Suite Subscription R -60.38

Google Payment - G Suit 60.38

01/06/2020 Expense US001R338G Google - Online Payments G Suite Subscription R -60.00

Google Payment - G Suit 60.00



June 18, 2020 

MEMO TO THE MGA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Subject: Agenda Item 6.2.2 

Title: Trout Unlimited, Inc. Scope of Services and Budget to Monitor 
Streamflow in the Upper Soquel Creek Watershed 

The Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (MGA) entered into a 
Professional Services Agreement (Agreement) with Trout Unlimited, Inc. (Trout 
Unlimited) to monitor streamflow to characterize dry season low flow conditions in 
the Upper Soquel Creek drainage network. The work will include the operation and 
maintenance of up to four streamflow gages, previously established by Trout 
Unlimited and the Resource Conservation District of Santa Cruz County. Work will 
occur from approximately May through October 2020.  

The monitoring instruments deployed in the streams record water temperature, stage 
and streamflow data in 15-minute intervals. Trout Unlimited will conduct 
approximately monthly field visits to record readings, take photos to document site 
conditions, and download data for each gage. At the end of the monitoring period, 
Trout Unlimited will provide a brief report summarizing streamflow conditions in the 
Upper Soquel Creek watershed during the dry season (May through October 2020), 
along with rating curves and streamflow datasets for each gage. The Scope of 
Services does not include gage elevation surveys, but these could be added at the 
request of the MGA. 

The budget under the Agreement is not to exceed $25,000. 

Possible Board Actions: 

1. Informational, no action necessary.

By ___________________________________ 
Tim Carson 
Program Director 
Regional Water Management Foundation 



9 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

At up to four gaging sites, Consultant will monitor streamflow to characterize dry season 
low flow conditions in the Upper Soquel Creek drainage network (April through October 
2020). Consultant will oversee the operation and repair of the four streamflow gages 
previously established by Consultant and the Resource Conservation District of Santa 
Cruz County. Consultant will conduct approximately monthly field visits to collect 
streamflow measurements, record staff plate readings, photo document site conditions, 
and to download data from each gage. Consultant will develop and update rating 
curves and streamflow datasets for each gage and provide the data to the MGA at the 
end of the project period in an excel format. Consultant will provide a brief report 
summarizing streamflow conditions in the Upper Soquel Creek watershed during the dry 
season for water year 2020. 

Task 1: Project coordination, management and reporting 
• Consultant will submit invoices and manage the contract with the MGA.
• Consultant will participate in project related calls with the MGA.

Task 2: Streamflow monitoring 
• Consultant will oversee the operation and repair of up to four surface water

gages during the project period.
• Consultant will collect and quality control all project related field data and store it

in Consultant’s server.
• Consultant will produce a brief report at the end the project period describing

streamflow conditions in the study area during the dry season 2020.

Task 2 deliverables: 
• 15-minute interval water temperature, stage and streamflow datasets at up to

four streamflow gaging stations, during the dry season, April through October in
2020. 

• Brief report describing surface water conditions during the dry season, April
through October 2020.

• Note: monitoring scope of work and budget does not include gage elevation
surveys, surveys can be added upon request.



10 

EXHIBIT B 
BUDGET 

MGA shall provide compensation to Consultant in an amount not to exceed $25,000 for 
the services to be performed under this Agreement as described in Exhibit A. The 
budget for Consultant’s Scope of Services is detailed in Consultant’s proposal dated 
January 8, 2020.  The cost is presented in Table 1. The estimated hours by Task and 
Personnel is presented in Table 2. 

Table 1. 

Project Task Staff Labor 

Travel/ 
Subcontractors/ 

expenses TOTAL 
Task 1: Project management 
Personnel* $ 2,845.00 $ 2,845.00 

Subtotal $ 2,845.00 $ - $   2,845.00 
Task 2: Streamflow monitoring, gage maintenance, data analysis and brief report 
Personnel* $ 17,650.00 $  17,650.00 
Travel* $ 835.20 $ 835.20 
Other expenses (gage repair supplies)* $ 200.00 $ 200.00 

Subtotal $ 17,650.00 $ 1,035.20 $ 18,685.20 
Project Total $20,550.00 $1,035.20 $21,530.20 

Indirect* $3,421.15 
Total $24,951.35 

*See budget justification

Table 2. Budget Justification 

Project Task
Total Hours** $/Hour Staff Labor

Travel/ 
Subcontractors

/expenses TOTAL

Conservation Hydrologist 15 $75.00 $1,125.00 $1,125.00
CA Water Program Director 4 $80.00 $320.00 $320.00
Grants Administrator 20 $70.00 $1,400.00 $1,400.00

$2,845.00
Task 2: Streamflow monitoring, gage maintenance and repairs, data analysis, database management, and photo review
Conservation Hydrologist 92 $75.00 $6,900.00 $6,900.00
Associate Scientist II 20 $65.00 $1,300.00 $1,300.00
Associate Scientist I 105 $50.00 $5,250.00 $5,250.00
Other TU staff, intern or contractor 105 $40.00 $4,200.00 $4,200.00
Mileage $835.20 $835.20
Other Expenses $200.00 $200.00

$18,685.20
$21,530.20

$3,421.15
$24,951.35

**Personnel time may vary slightly between TU staff members, but total amount spent will stay within task subtotals. 

Note: monitoring scope of work and budget does not include gage elevation surveys, surveys can be added upon request. 

Task 1: Project management

Project Subtotal

Total
Indirect (TU NICRA @ 15.89%)

Task 2 Subtotal

Task 1 Subtotal



March 3, 2020 

California Coastal Commission 
Central Coast District 
725 Front Street #300 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

Re: Support for Soquel Creek Water District Pure Water Soquel Project 
  March 2020 Agenda Item Wednesday 22b 
  Application 3.20-2014  

Dear Coastal Commissioners: 

On behalf of the Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Agency (MGA), we are writing in support of the 
Pure Water Soquel Water Project.   

The MGA is a local Groundwater Sustainability Agency that was established in 2016 in response to 
California’s Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. The MGA is responsible for developing and 
implementing a Groundwater Sustainability Plan for Santa Cruz Mid-County Groundwater Basin (Basin). 
The California Department of Water Resources (DWR) classifies the Basin as a high priority groundwater 
basin in critical overdraft. 

In January 2020, the MGA submitted to DWR the required Groundwater Sustainability Plan that presents 
the projects and management actions to achieve groundwater sustainability in the Basin by 2040.  The 
Pure Water Soquel Water Project is identified in the Groundwater Sustainability Plan as a key 
component of the efforts to achieve sustainability in the Basin. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

AGENDA ITEM 6.2.3



1

Tim Carson

From: Tim Carson
Sent: Monday, March 02, 2020 4:42 PM
To: 'Becky Steinbruner'
Cc: Sierra Ryan
Subject: RE: Where Can I Access a Hard Copy of Final MidCounty Groundwater 

Agency Draft GSP as Submitted to State?

Good afternoon Ms. Steinbruner, 

A hardcopy of the GSP as submitted to DWR will be available for public viewing at the Soquel Creek Water District office 
during normal business hours.  

We are sending the GSP to the printer this week and will notify you via email when the hardcopy is available to view at 
the District office. I expect it will be available within the next week or so. 

Best, 
Tim 

Tim Carson 
Program Director 
REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT FOUNDATION  
COMMUNITY FOUNDATION SANTA CRUZ COUNTY

7807 Soquel  Drive |  Aptos,  CA 95003 
831.662.2000 | 831.662.2050 Direct  
tcarson@cfscc.org | www.cfscc.org  

From: Becky Steinbruner [mailto:ki6tkb@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Saturday, February 29, 2020 10:14 PM 
To: Darcy Pruitt <DPruitt@cfscc.org>; Tim Carson <tcarson@cfscc.org> 
Cc: Becky Steinbruner <ki6tkb@yahoo.com> 
Subject: Where Can I Access a Hard Copy of Final MidCounty Groundwater Agency Draft GSP as Submitted to State? 

Hi, Ms. Pruitt and Mr. Carson, 
I note that the GSP is now posted for comment on the State Waterboard website through May 4.  Where can I access a 
hard copy of the Draft GSP as it has been submitted? 

Thank you for your help. 
Sincerely, 
Becky Steinbruner 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1


	Agenda
	4.1 Draft Minutes, January 16, 2020 Board Meeting
	4.2 Acknowledge Member Agency Board Appointments
	4.3 Approve Letters of Support for the Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency's College Lake Integrated Resources Management Project
	4.3.1 Notice of Public Hearing 

	5.1 Review Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20 and Preliminary Budget for 2020-21
	5.1.1  Budget Summary
	5.1.2 Operating Expenses

	5.2 Ratify Santa Cruz Mid-County Basin Water Year 2019 Annual Report
	5.3 Approve Montgomery & Associates Contract Change Order
	5.3.1 Cost Estimate for GSP Annual Reporting (Water Year 2019)

	5.4 Approve Contract for Administrative and Staff Support from the Regional Water Management Foundation in FY 2020/21
	5.4.1 A Summary of RWMF Proposed Tasks in FY 2020/21 to Supporting the MGA

	6.1 Treasurer's Report (memo)
	6.1.1 Treasurer's Report

	6.2 Staff Reports
	6.2.2 Trout Unlimited, Inc. Memo, Scope of Services and Budget to Monitor Streamflow in the Upper Soquel Creek Watershed
	6.2.3 Letter of Support for Soquel Creek Water District Pure Water Soquel Project

	8.1 Email from B. Steinbruner dated March 2, 2020



